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UNITED STATES ERNVIEONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION IX
75 Hawthorne Street
Ban Francisco, GA 94105-3801
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MAR 10 2000

CERTIFIED MAIL NO. 7003 3110 0006 2000 8625
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

IN REPLY: AIR-5
REFER TO: Docket No. R9-10-02

David Vickers

President

Lehigh Southwest Cement Company
12667 Alcosta Blvd.

Bishop Ranch 13

San Ramon. CA 94583

Dear Mr. Vickers:
Re:  Lehigh Southwest Cement Company Notice and Finding of’ Violation
Dear Mr. Vickers:

Enclosed is a copy of a Notice of Violation and Finding of Violation ("NOV/FOV")
{ssued pursuant to sections 113(a)(1), 113(a)(3) and 167 of the Clean Alr Act, 42 US.C,
&8 7401-7671q (the "Act"}, notifying you that the United States Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA™), Region IX, finds that Lehigh Southwest Cement Company (“Lehigh”) has
violated cerlain sections of the Act's Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality and
Title V Operating Permit Program, at its Portland cement plant located in Cupertino, California
(the "Facility").

You should be aware that section 113(a)(1), 113(2)(3) and 167 of the Act authorizes EPA
to issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Act, issue an administrative
penally order, or commence a civil action seeking an injunction and/or a civil penalty.
Furthermore, section 113(c) of the Act provides for eriminal penalties in certain cases.

In addition, section 306 of the Act, 42 U.8.C. 7606, the regulations promulgated
thereunder (2 C.F.R. Part 180}, and Executive Otder 1738 provide that facilities to be utilized in
federal contracts, grants and loans must be in full compliance with the Act and all regulations
promulgated pursuant to it. A vielation of the Act may result in the Cupertine Plant being
declared ineligible for participation in any federal contract, grant, or loan.
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~ Ifyou wish to diseuss the enclosed NOV/FOV, you may request a conference with EPA
within ten (10) working days of receipt of this NOV/FOV. The conference will afford Lehigh an
opporlunity to present information bearing on the finding of violation, the nature of the
violations, and any efforts it may have taken or proposes to take to achieve compliance.

If you have any questions pertaining to this NOV/EOV, please contact Charles Aldred of
Lhe Aiv Enforeement Office at (415) 972-3986, or have your altorney contact Tvan Lieben of the
Office of Regional Counsel at (415) 972-3914.

Thank you for your cooperation in this maiter.
Sincerely,

N

Deborah Jorda
Direclor, Air Division

Enelosure
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’f’:_:;n:;; o REGION IX

75 Hawihome Street
San Francisco, CA 84105-3901

MAR 10 2000

IN REPLY: AIR-5
REFER TO: Docket No. R9-10-02

Jack Broadbent

Air Pollution Control Officer

Bay Area Air Quality Management District
939 Ellis SI.

San PPrancisco, CA 94109

&
Dear XEA ﬁadhemt:

tnclosed for your information is a copy of a Notice of Violation and Finding of
Violation ("NOV/FOV") that the United States Environmental Protection Agency
("EPA™, Region IX, issued to the Lehigh Southwest Cement Company (*Lehigh™) for
violations of the Cléan Air Act (*Act™) at Lehigh"s Portland cement plant in Cupertino,
California (the “Facility™).

The purpose of the NOV/FOV is to notify Lehigh that EPA. finds that it has
violated the Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V Operating Permit
Program requirenients of the Act at the Facility. The violations are set forth more
specifically in the enclosed NOV/FOV. The NOV/FOV has been issued pursuant to
sections 113(a)(1). 113(a)(3) and 167 of the Act, 42 UL.5.C. § 7401-7671q.

The Act also pravides that after 30 days irom the issuance of an NOV, EPA may
determine if any action will be taken pursuant to Section 113 of the Act,

It you have any questions concerning ihis NOV/FOV, please contact Charles
Aldred of the Region 9 Air Enforcement Office at (415) 972-3986, or

ildred.e hurles.f epuuoy,

Sincerely,
o
A
Deborah Jordan
Director, Alr Division

Enclosure

Printed oi Reeyeled Paper
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San Francisco, GA 24105-3501

MR 1 9 2000
IN REPLY: AIR-5
REFER TQ: Docket No. R9-10-02

Jin1 Ryden

Enforeement Division Chief
Calilornia Air Resources Board
P.O. Box 2815

Sacramento, CA 95812

Dear Mr. Ryden:

Enclosed for your information is a copy of a Notice of Violation and Finding of
Violation ("NOV/FOV") that the United States Environmenial Protection Agency
(“*EPA™), Region IX, issued to the Lehigh Southwest Cement Company (*Lehigh™) for
violations of the Clean Air Act (“Act™) at Lehigh’s Portland cement plant in Cupertino,
California (the *Facility™).

The purpose of the NOV/FOV is to notify Lehigh that EPA finds that it has
violated the Prevention of Signilicant Deterioration and Title V Operating Permit
Program requirements of the Act at the Facility. The violations are set forth more
specitically in the enclosed NOV/FOVY. The NOV/FQV has been issued pwsuant o
sections 113(a)(1), 113(a)(3) and 167 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671q.

The Act also provides that after 30 days from fhe issuance of an NOV, EPA may
determing ifany action will be taken pursuant to Section 113 of the Act.

Il you have any questions concerning this NQV/FOV, please contact Charles
Aldred of the Region 9 Air Enforcement Office at (415) 972-3986, or
alded.charles tsepnpoy,

Sincerely,

; 5 3
e
Deborah Jordan
Director, Air Division

. Enclosure

Printed an Kecvelad Paper




UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION IX

In thes Matter of;

Docket No. R9-10-02
NOTICE OF VIOLATION
AND FINDING OF
VIOLATION

LEHIGH SOUTHWEST CEMENT COMPANY

roceeding under Section 1l13(a)
f the Clesan Air Act,
2 0U.5.C, § 9613(a)

B L

NQTICE OF VIOLATION/FINDING OF VIOLATION

This Notice of Violation and Finding of Violation
("NOV/FOV") is lssued to the Lehigh Southwest Cement Company
(“Lehigh”) for violations of the Clean Air Act (“CAA” or the
“nct”), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401-7671lq, &t its Portland
cement manufacturing facility located in Cupertino, California
(the “Facility”). Lehlgh violated the prevention of Significant
Detarioration (“PSD”) and Title Operating Permit Program
requirements of the Bet at the Facility. This NOV/FOV is igsued
pursuant to Sections 113{a) (1), 113{(a)(3) and 167 of the Act.
Section 113(a) (1) requires the Administrator of the United States
Environment Protection Agency (“EPA") to nolify any pesrson she
finds in violation of an applicable implementation plan or a
permit. 'The federal PSD regulations also clarify that failure to
comply with the PSD provisions renders a source supject to
enforcement under Section 113 of the Rct, See 40 C.F.R. § 52.23.
The authority to issue this NOV has been delegated to the
Regional Administrator of EPA Region 9 and further re-delegated

to the Director of the Air Division in EPA Region 9.




SUMMARY OF VIOLATIONS

The Facility is a Portland cement manufacturing plant
comprised of one kiln, and associated eguipment used to produce
clinker, including a preheater tower, precalciner, clinker
cooler, induced draft (“ID”) and other fans, cement finish mills,
and extensive sections of ductwork.

This NOV/FOV concerns a series of physical modifications
made to the Facility from 1996 through 1999. Lehigh subséqdently
operated the Facility with the modified equipment which resulted
in significant net emission increases. As a result, the
projects, either individually or in the aggregafe, caused an
increase in production of cement and an increase in emissions of
air pollutanits to the atmésphere from the Facility.

The Facility is located in an area that has at all relevant
Fimes bten classified as attainment for nitrogen dioxide (“NO02")
and sulfur dioxide (“S0:”). Accordingly, the PSD provisions of
Part €, Title T of the Act apply to operations at the Facility
for oxides of nitrogen (“N0.“)! and $0; emissions. EPA has |
determined that the physical or operational changes identified in
this NOV/FOV, either individually or_in the aggregate, wexé major
modifications for PSD purposes since the Facility significantly

increased both actual and potential emissions of NO. and S0: as a
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result of the changes. Moresovern, Lehigh fa

or more PSD permits for the modifications covering MO, and SOz

WO, serves as the regulatsd pollutant for the NO. standard.
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emissions. Lehigh’s failure tﬁ apply for a BSD permit or install
and operate additional emissions controls megting best available
control technology (*BACT") covering these pollutants when it
constructed and began Opeﬁating the physical or operational
changes was a violation of the PSD reguirements of the Kot

Lehigh has also violated the Title V Operating Permit

h

Program requirements of the Act set forth at 42°U.5.C. §§ 7461-
7661f, the federal Title V regulations set forth at 4Q C.F.R.
Part 70, and the approved Bay Area Air Quality Management
District (“BBRAQMDY) Title V program set forth at Regulation 2
Rule 6. BAAQMD has administered an approved Title V Operating
Permit Program since Novembér 29, 1994. Lehigh’s failure toO
identify PSD requirements in its application submitted to BAAQMD
for a Title V permit, supplement or correct that application to
include PSD requirements, or obtain a Title V pecmit that
contains the PSD reguirements after the construction and
operation of the physical or operational changess are violations
of Title V requiremeﬁts.- See 47 U.S.C. §§ 7661lb{a)-(b) and
9661ic(a); 40 C.F.R. §§ 70.5(a) (¢); BRAQMD Regulation 2 Rule &.

As a result, Lehigh obtained a deficient Title V pemmit, 4Gy

J-i=

one that did not include all applicable requirements, and

therefore is operating Lhe Facility without a valid Title Vv
permit in wviolation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 766la, 7661b, and 766lc; 40

C.F.R. §§ 70.1, 70.5 and 70.6; and BAAQMD Regulation 2 Rule 4.




STATUTORY & REGULATORY BACKGROUND

.National Ambient Aix Quality Standaids
1. The Administrator of EPA, pursuant to authority under
Section 109 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7408, has p;qmulgated
National Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NARQS") for certain
criteria pollutants relevant to this NOV/FOV, including NOs; and
S0;. See 40 C.T.R. §§ 50.4, .50.5, 50.7, 50.8, 50,9, and 50.10.
2. Pursuant to Section 107(d) of the Act,

42 U.5.C. § 7407 (d), ths Administrator promulgated lists of

ﬂl

ttainment status designations for each air guality control
region (“AQCR") in every state. These lists identifly the
attainment status of each AQCR for each of the criteria
pollutants. The attainment status designations for the
California AQCRs are listad at 40 C.F.R. §§ 81.305.
Prevention of Significant Deterioration

3 Section 110 of the Act, 42 U.3.C. § 7410, requires each
state to adopt and subﬁii to EPA a plan that provides for the
implementation, maintenance and enforcement of primary and
secondary NAAQS in the state. Upon approva; by EPA, the plan
becomes part of the applicable state implementation plan (“SIP")
for that state.

iq. Section 110{(a) (2)(C) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7410(a){2)(C), requires that each SIP include a P3D
permit program as provided in Part C of Title I of the Act, 42
U.S.C. §§ 7470-7491., Paxt C sets Fforth requirements for SIPs

for attainment areas to ensure maintenance of the NAAQS.



5. On June 19, 1978, pursuant to Sections 160 through 169
of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7470-7479, EPA promulgated federal PSD
requlations at 40 C.F.R. § 52.21. 43 Fed. Reg. 26,402.

5. The federal PSD program was incorporated into all
applicable implementation plans nation-wide and contains the
applicable PSD program reguirements for each piaﬂ until EPA
approves into an individual SIP a replacement program. See 40
C.F.R. § 52.21(a); 42 U.S.C. § 7410(a) (2} (C). -

T Pursuant to Section 107(d) of the Act,

42 U.8.C. § 7407(d}, the Admiﬁist:ator promulgated lists of
attainment status designations for each BQCR in every state.
These lists identify the attailnment status of each AOCR for each
of the criteria pollutants. The NOp and S0 attalpment status
designations for thé California AQCRs are listed at

40 C.F.R. § §1.305.

8. . The BARAQMD has primafy jurisdiction over major
stationary sources of air pollution sources in the San Francisco
Bay BArea Intrastate AQCR. 40 C.F.R. § 81.21. This jurisdiction
includes the Facility.

Y. Saction 161 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7471, requires that
each SIP contains provisions to implement the Act's PSD program
for armas of that state which are designated as being in
attainment with any NARQS for a criteria pollutant. The PSD
program applies to major new sources of air pollution.

10. The PSD permitting program for the San Francisco Bay
Area Intrastate AQCR is the federal P3D program, which is set

forth at 40 C.F.R., § 52.21.




11. Subseguent to 1978, the PSD regulations have been
periodically revised. As the PSD violations identified in this
NOV/FOV first commenced from 1991 ﬁhrough 2003, the 1892
amendments to the PSD regulations contain the applicable
provisions pertaining to the alleged violations identified in
this NOV/FOV. See 57 Fed. Reg. 32314 (July 21, 1992).

12. 40 C.F.R. § 52.21 {b)(1)(i)(a) (1992) defined a “major
stationary source” as any stationary source within one of 28
source categories which emits, or has the potential to emit, 100
tons per year {“Epy”) or mors of any air pollutant subject to
regulation under the Act. Portland cement plants are included
among the 28 source categories.

13. The P3D Regulations defined a “major modification” as
“any physical change in or change in the method of operation of a
major stationary sourxce that would result in a significant net

emissions increase of any pollutant subject to regulation under

Ul

the Act.” 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b) (2} (i) (1992}.

14. 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b)(3) (1) (1992) defined “net
emissions increase” as the “amount by which the sum of the
following exceeds zero:

a. Any increase in actual emissions from a particular
phvsical change or change in the method of operation at a
stationary source; and

b. Any other increases and decreases in actual enissions
at the source that are contemporaneous with the particular change
and otherwise creditable.”

15, 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b){21) (1992) defined “actual




emissions” as follows: “In deneral, actual emlssions as.éf a
particular date shall equal the average rate, in tons per year,
at which the unit actually emitted the pollutant during a two-
year period which precedes the particular date and which is

normal source operation.” The PSD regulations

I=h

represantative o
alsc provide that “[f£]or any emissions unit ... which has not
begun normal operations on the particular date, actual emissions
shall equal the potential to emit on that date.” 40 C.F¥.R.

§ 52.21(b) (21) (TV) (1982).

16. 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b) {4) (1992) defined “potential to
émit” as the “masimum capacity of a stationary source to emit a
pollutant under its physical or eperational design. Any physical
or operational limitation on the capacity of the souxrce to enit a
pollutant, including the air pellution control eguipment and
restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of
material combusted, stored, or processed, shall be treated as

part of its design if the limitation or the effect it wounld have

on émissions is federally enforceable.”

.17. As such, the PSD regulations ntilize an actual-to-
potential test to determine whether an amissions increase
accurred. Moreover, 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(b) (23) (1) (1992} defined
Msignificant” and states that, in reference to NOy and S0,
significant net emissions increase megans an increase that would
equal oxr exceed 40 tons or more per year.

18. An applicant for a PSD permit to modify a stationary
sourée is required to submit all information necessary TO allow

the permitting authority to perform any analysis or make any




detaermination fequired in order to issue the appropriate permit.
40 C.F.R. § 52,21(n} (1982}. |

19. 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(i) [1992) prohibited commencement of
actual construction of a major modification to which the FSD
requirements apply unless the source had a permit stating that
the reguirements of 40 C.F.R. §§ 52.21(j)-(xr) had been met.

20. The PSD permitting process required, among other
ithings, that for pollutants emitted in significant amounts, the
owner or operation of a major scurce apply BACT to control
emissions, 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(j) (1992); model air quality, 40
C.F.R., € 52.21(1) (1992); and pexform a detailed impact analysis
regarding both the NARQS and allowable increments, 40 C.F.R.

§ 52.21(k) (1i992).

21. Any owner or operator of a source or modification

effective date of the PSD regulations without applying for and
receiving a PSD pernit is subject to appropriate enforcement
action by EPA. 40 C.F.R. § 52.21(r) (1) (1992); Sections 113 and

167 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413 and 7471,

Title V Operating Perxrmit Pzogram
22. Title V of the Act, 42 U.5.C. 8§ 7661-7661%,
astablishes an operating permit program for “major sources,”
including any source required to have a BSD permit. See Saction
502{a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 766la(a). Regulatiomns

implementing the Title V permit program are set foxth in 40




L.F.R, Part 70.

23, pursuant to Title V, it is unlawful for any person to
violate any requirement of a permit issued under Title V or to
operate a major source except in compliance with a permit issued
by a parmitiing authority under Title V. Section 502(a) of the
Act, 42 1J.5.C. & 7J6bla(a).

24. Undexr Section 502(d) (1) of the Act, states were
required to develep and obtain approval to administer Title V
programs. 42 U.5.C., § 766la(d)(1l). EPA granted interim approval.
of BéAQMD’s Title V Operating Permit Program effective July 24,
‘l995, and final full approval was effective November 30, 2001.
See 40 £.F.R. Part 70 Appendix A. |

25. Sources subject to Title V and falling under BAARQMD's

jurisdiction are required to submit to BAAQMD timely and complete

=
|--l

itle V applications that identify, among other things, all
“applicable requirements,” including PSD requirements. See 40
C.F.B. § 70.5(a): BARQMD Rule 2-6-404 and 2-6-405.

26. Sources subject to Title V and falling under BAAQMD' s
jurisdiction who have submitted an application are required to
supplement or correct the application to include applicable
requirements that were not included in the original application.

40 C.F.R. § 70.5({h); BRAQMD Rule 2-6-405.10.

27. Sources subject to Title V and falling under.BAAQMD

jurisdiction nmust obtain a Title V permit that: 1} contains such

conditions necessary to assure compliance with the applicable




ceguirements: 2) identifies all applicable reqguirements the
source is subject to; and 3) certifies compliance with all
applicable reguirements, and 4} where a sourcs is not meeting

requirements, contains a plan for coming into compliance.

43

ections 503 and 504 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661lb and 1561lcl{al ;
40 C.F.R. §8 70.1, 70.5 and 70.6; BAAQMD Rule 2-6-409.

28, TFailure of a source subject to Title V to submit a
complete application, supplement that application when new
requirements become applicable, or to obtain a Title V permit
that contains all applicable requirements, such as PSD
reguirements, are violatiéhs of the Act.

FINDINGS OF FACT

29. The Facility is a Portland cement manufacturing
facility, which is located at 24001 Stevens Creesk Boulevard,
Euperiino, Santa Clara County, California.

30. The San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin, which includes
Santa Clara County where the Facility is located, was designated
as attainment/unclassifiable at all times for NOz and 80z by
operation of law under Sections 107(d) (1) (T) and 186(a) of the
Act, 42 U.5.C. §§ 7407(d) (1) (C) and 7486(a). Sea 56 Fed. Reg.
| 56694 (Nov. 6, 1991); 40 C.F.R. § 81.305.

31. Lehigh is the current owner and operator of ths
‘Facility. The Facility was formerly owned by Hanson Permanente
Cement and Kaiser Cement Corpeoration. |

32. The Facility includes one kiln, and assocliated

10




equipment used to produce clinker, iﬂcluding a preheater tower,
précaleiner, clinker cooler, induced draft (“ID”) and other fans,
cement finish mills, and extensive sections of ductwork.

33, The combustion of coal, petroleum coke, and natural gas
at the kiln at the Facility produces emissions of NO, and SOz,
which are released to the atmosphere through a collection of 32
individual mini-stacks exiting from the baghouse.

34, Between 1996 and 1999, Lehigh commenced construction of
various physical and/or operational changes at the Facility, and
has continued to operate the Facility with thesse ﬁodificatiens,

including, but not limited to, the following:

=

a. Upgrades to the finish mill; and

b. Various other modifications, upgrades, and operational
changes [the: The underlying documents identifying thase
other projects have been claimed by Lehigh as confidential
business information, and thersefore are not being
spacifically identified in this NOV/FOV. . Regardless, as the
NOV/FOV raises allegations relating to all physical or
operational changes commencing from 1996 through 1899, thase
other projects are covered within the scope of the
NOV/FOV. ] . |
35, TLehigh intended that these physical or operational

changes, either individually or in the aggresgate, would increase

the production capacity of the Facility.

36. These physical or operational changes, either

11




individually or in the aggregate, resulted in an increase in
annual ¢linker production at the Facility.
Prevention of Significant Deterioration
37. The Title V Permit issued by BAAQMD included, among
other conditions, thérfollowing annual emissions limits for ﬁox

and 50 emissions from the Kiln at the Facility:

NO, S0

Fmissions limit
(tpy}

36. As Lhe limits in the Title V Permit for the Facllity

5,032 2,106.8

are federally enforceable, they constitute the Facility’s
Potential bteo Emit (VPTE™).

39. Based upon a comparison of pre-construction actual
emissions to post-gonstruction PTE, the phy al or operational

S1C
changes identified in Paragraph 34, either individually o6r in the

aqgregate, resulted in net emissions increases from the Facility

of MO, and S0:. .

40. The net emissions increases of ﬁox and S0; as a result
of the physical or operational cﬁanges identified in Paragraph
34, either individually or in the aggregate, constitute a PSD
significant net emissions increase since the increases were above
40 tpy for MO, and S50.

41. Each of the physical or opsrational changes identified
in Paragraph 34 constituted, eilther individually or in the
aggregate, a "major modification” to the Facility for PSD

purposes, as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 52.21 (b)) (2) (1) -

42. Lehigh did not apply for a P3D Permit covering NO, and




50, emissions for any of the physical or operational changes
identified in Paragraph 34.

43, Lehigh failed to install and operate BACT-level
emission controls for NO, and 30; emissions from the Facility
gither at the time each of the physical or operational changes
identifiad in Paragraph 34 were commenced orx any time since thelr

completion and operation.

Title V Operating Permit Program
44, BAs alleged in Paragraphs 34 through 4§, Lehigh
commenced one or more major modifications at its Facility
commenéing from 1996 through 1999, -and the modifications
triggered the requirements to cbtain a PSD permit, undergo a P3D
BACT analysis, aﬁd operate in compliance with the PSD pesrmit.

Lehigh failed

Juut=

o sat

0]

sfy these requirements.

r

45. Lehigh first submitted a Title V application to BARQMD
on June 21, 1996. 'The final permit was issued by BAAQMD on
November 5, 2003.

* 46. Prier to issuance of the Title V permit, Lehigh failed
o supplement and/or correct its Title V permit application to

y all applicable requirements, including PSD requiremenis

=h

identi
for NO. and 30, a plan to come intc compliance with those PSD
requirements, and an updated certification of compliance that
included the PSD requirvements.

47. As a result of Lehigh's failure to provide complete

on in its application or to supplement and/or correct

|=-
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Title V Operating Permit Brogxam -
1. MNotice is also given to Lehigh that it failed to
supplement ox correct its Title V application submitted to BAAQMD

to include PSD requirements or obtain a Title V permit that

0y

contained PSD requirements, and therefore is in violation of
ENFORCEMENT

52. For any violation of a SIP, such as for PéD violations,
Section 113(a) (1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a) (1}, provides
that at any time after the expiration of 30 days following the
date of the issuance of a notice of viclation, the Administrator
. may, without regard to the period of violation, issue an order
regquiring compliance with the requirements of the SIP, issus an
administrative penalty order, or bring a civil action pursuant to
Section 113(h) for injunctive relief and/or civil penalties of

not more than $25,000 per day for each violation that occurs on

o
i
n

before January 30, 1997, not more than $27,500 per day for
each wviolation that occuxrs after January 30,l1997, not more than
$32, 500 per day for each violation that occurs after March 14,
2004; and not more than $37,500 per day for each violation that
oceurs after January 12, 2009. 42 U.s.C., § 7413(a)(l); Federal
Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 19390, Pub. L.
101-410, as amended; 40 C.F.R, Part 19.

53. Sections 113(a) (3) and 167 of the Act, 42 U.S.C.

§§ 7413 (a) (3) and 7477, provide additional authority for EPA TO

enforce against violators of the Act.

15



54. Section 113(c) of the Bct, 42 U.8.C. § 7413(c),
provides for criminal penalties, imprisonment, or both for
persons who knowingly violate any federal regulation or permit
requirement. For violations of the SIP, a criminal action can be
brought 30 davs after the date of issuance of a Notice of
Violation.

55. Section 306 of .the Act, 42 U,5.C. § 7606, the

regulations promulgated thereunder (2 €.F.R. Part 180), and

5

Executive Order 11738 provide that facilities to be utilized in
federal contracts, grants and loans must be in full compliance
with the Act and all regulations promulgated pursuant te it. A
violation of.the Bet may result in Lehigh and/or the Facility
being declared ineligible for participation in any federal
conitract, grant, or loan.
PENATTY ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

56. Section 113(e)(l) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2613 (e) (1),
states that the Administrator or the court shall determine the
amount of a penalty to be assessed by taking into consideration
such factors as justice may require, including the size of the
business, the sconomic impact of the penalty on ithe business, the
violator’s full compliance history and good faith efforts to
comply, the durgtion of the violation as established by any
credible evidence (including evidence other than the applicable
test -method), payment by the violator of penalties previously
assassed for the same violations, the economic benefit of
noncompliance, and the seriousness of the violation.

57. Section 113(e)(2) of the Act, 42 U.5.C. § 9613 (e) (2},

16



a;lows the Administrator or the court to assess a peﬁalty for
sach day of violation. This section further provides that for
plrposss of determining the number of days of violation, where
BEPA makes a prima facie showing that the conduct or events giving
rise to the violation are likely to have continued oxr recurred
‘Past the date of an NOV, the days of violation shall be presumed
to include the date of the NOV and each and every day thereafterx
until the facility establishes that continuous compliance has
beén achieved, éxcept to the extent that the facility can prove
by the preponderance of the evidence tﬁat there were intervening
days during which no violation occurred or that the viclation was

not continuing in nature.
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OPPO#TUNITE Fﬂﬁ CONFERENCE

58. Lehithmay confer with EPA regarding this NOV/FOV if it
so requests. A conference would enable Lehigh to present
evidence bearing on the finding of violation, an the nature of
violation, and on any efforts it may have taken or proposes to
take to achieve compliance. If Lehigh seeks such a conference,
it may choose to be represented by counsel. 1If Lehigh wishes to
confer with EPA, it must make a .request for a conference within
10 working days of receipt of this NOV/FOV. Any request for a
conference or other inguiries concerning the NOV/FOV should be

made in writing to:

Ivan Lieben
Office of Regional Counsal
U.S5. EPA (ORC-2)
75 Rawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

(415)972-3914

Datad: §.4-/) ﬂ%y%/

Deborah Jorfan
Director, Eir Division




